ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 27, 2017
7:57 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Shel | ey Hughes, Chair
Senator Gary Stevens

Senat or Cathy G essel

Senat or Tom Begi ch

MEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or John Coghi |
COW TTEE CALENDAR
SENATE BI LL NO. 87

"An Act relating to energy efficiency standards and standardi zed
options for building and equipnment conponents for schoo

construction and major mai nt enance; relating to school
construction and rmajor nmaintenance grants and bond debt
rei mbur senent; est abl i shi ng a wor ki ng gr oup to make

recommendations relating to energy efficiency and standardized
conponents in schools; and providing for an effective date.”

- HEARD & HELD

SENATE BILL NO. 96

"An Act relating to education; relating to school districts;
relating to course credit for students; relating to group
i nsurance, self-insurance, and other cooperative arrangenents
bet ween school di stricts and busi nesses, nonprof it
organi zati ons, and governnent agencies; relating to funding for
school districts; relating to school operating funds; relating
to conpetency exam nations for teacher certificates; relating to
t he Professional Teaching Practices Commssion; relating to the
duties and powers of the Departnent of Education and Early
Devel opnent and the conm ssioner of education and early
devel opnent ; relating to a virtual education consortium
relating to the mninmm wage for bus drivers; relating to the
i nvestnent, appropriation, and admnistration of the public
school trust fund; and providing for an effective date."

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -1- March 27, 2017



- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 87

SHORT TITLE: SCHOOL CONSTRUCTI ON ENERGY EFFI Cl ENCY STD
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) MACKI NNON

03/ 10/ 17 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 10/ 17 (S) EDC, FIN

03/ 22/ 17 (S) EDC AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 22/ 17 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 22/ 17 (S) M NUTE( EDC)

03/ 24/ 17 (S) EDC AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 24/ 17 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 24/ 17 (S) M NUTE( EDC)

03/ 27/ 17 (S) EDC AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
BILL: SB 96

SHORT TITLE: EDUCATI ON: SCHOOLS/ TEACHERS/ FUNDI NG
SPONSOR(s): EDUCATI ON

03/ 20/ 17 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
03/ 20/ 17 (S) EDC, FIN

03/ 22/ 17 (S) EDC AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 22/ 17 (S) Heard & Held

03/ 22/ 17 (S) M NUTE( EDC)

03/ 23/ 17 (S EDC AT 8: 00 AM BELTZ 105 ( TSBI dg)
03/ 23/ 17 (S) Heard & Held

03/ 23/ 17 (S) M NUTE( EDC)

03/ 24/ 17 (S) EDC AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 24/ 17 (S <Bi |l Hearing Cancel ed>

03/ 27/ 17 (S) EDC AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

SENATOR ANNA MACKI NNON

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 87.

CRAI G FREDEEN

Vice Chair

Associ ation for Learning Environnments

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information on SB 87.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 2- March 27, 2017



JOSHUA BANKS, Staff

Senat or Shel | ey Hughes

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ai ned the changes in version T of SB 96.

HEl DI TESHNER, Director

Adm ni strative Services

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opment ( DEED)
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to SB 96

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

7:57: 01 AM

CHAIR SHELLEY HUGHES <called the Senate Education Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 7:57 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Begich, G essel, Stevens, and Chair Hughes.

SB 87- SCHOOL CONSTRUCTI ON ENERGY EFFI CI ENCY STD

7:57:25 AM

CHAI R HUGHES announced the consideration of SB 87. She noted
there would be public testinmony on the bill. There were severa
changes to the bill; to add an architect and another

construction industry nenber to the working group, and to extend
the life span of a building from 30 years to 50 years. However
the new CS is not ready yet. The intent is to pass SB 87 from
committee at the next neeting.

7:58: 02 AM

CHAI R HUGHES opened and then cl osed public testinony on SB 87.
7:58:49 AM

SENATOR ANNA MACKI NNON, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor of SB
87, thanked the conmmttee for hearing the bill. She noted it is
a work in progress and said she looks forward to public
testinmony as the bill noves through the process.

CHAI R HUGHES expressed appreciation for Senator MacKi nnon's work
on the bill.

7:59: 25 AM
CHAI R HUGHES opened public testinony again.

7:59:43 AM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 3- March 27, 2017



CRAI G FREDEEN, Vi ce Chair, Associ ati on for Lear ni ng
Environnents, presented information on SB 87. He requested nore
timte to work on the bill wth the sponsor. He said the
associ ation has suggestions for ways to inprove the bill and
hel p reduce operational costs. He related that they like that an
architect was added to the working group. They requested that
mechani cal and el ectrical engineers also be added. They like the
i nclusion of AEA, Cold dinmate Housing, DOTPF, and AHFC

He said the association would provide a letter to the committee
with their suggestions. He appreciated the addition of
superintendents to the group. However, he said they represent
all the facility managers across the state and he requested that
two facility managers replace the two superintendents. He said
he would subnmit the rest of the items in witing. He |ooks
forward to seeing the bill progress and he offered the
associ ation's services throughout the process.

8:03:14 AM
CHAIR HUGHES noted there would be additional opportunities for
public testinony.

SENATOR STEVENS commented that it would be hard for existing
small schools to share their space. He asked M. Fredeen if he
approves of sharing new construction facilities.

MR. FREDEEN agreed with the concept. He understood that through
the DEED process it was already available to a certain extent.
He referred to the discussion about co-location at the |ast
nmeeti ng, but thought having separate entrances was not nentioned
in the bill. He suggested having a facility across from the
school instead of within the school for safety reasons. He said
techni cal services can be shared to save nobney. He pointed out
that there is a lack of technical resources in the state.

8:06: 05 AM
CHAIR HUGHES <closed public testimony and held SB 87 in
conmittee.

SB 96- EDUCATI ON:  SCHOOLS/ TEACHERS/ FUNDI NG

8. 06: 16 AM

CHAI R HUGHES announced the consideration of SB 96. She noted
there was a new CS for SB 96 and she wished to adopt it prior to
public testinony and the next neeting.

8: 06: 59 AM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -4- March 27, 2017



SENATOR G ESSEL noved to adopt the CS for SB 96, |abeled 30-
LS0452\ T, as the version before the commttee.

CHAI R HUGHES obj ected for di scussion.

8:07:10 AM
At ease

8.07:35 AM
JOSHUA BANKS, Staff, Senator Shelley Hughes, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, explained the changes in version T of SB 96.

8:07:55 AM

He expl ai ned the change on page 4, |ines 6-13: Del etes changes
in Version Rthat nay require school districts to cooperate with
busi nesses, nonprofit organi zations, and other state or | ocal
gover nment agenci es.

8:09: 00 AM

He said the next change is on page 6, lines 8-12: Adds | anguage
in Version T so that the multiplier is 1.00 for schools that are
subject to the changes nade in Section 11. Adds a definition of
“road” to be one that is open to the public and receives year-
round mai nt enance.

8:10: 20 AM

MR. BANKS referred to a proposed phase-in in Section 11 of the
reduction in funds for a school district. He explained that the
formul a already contains a phase-in over three years. Due to the
nunber of schools that are below 80 percent capacity the hold
harm ess provision would apply.

8:11:26 AM
CHAI R HUGHES requested information on the fiscal note.

8:11:40 AM
SENATOR STEVENS asked for <clarification of the phase-in in
Section 11.

MR. BANKS said the school size adjustnment is in Section 10 where
it shows how the ADM is sumed up and each step of the cost
factors. The phase-in cones in as the next step in the formul a.

8:12:48 AM

MR. BANKS addressed the next change found on page 8. There are
sonme third-party vendors that offer curriculum and this would
allow for it.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 5- March 27, 2017



8:13:31 AM

MR. BANKSturned to page 9, lines 3-6: Adds |anguage in Version T
to allow for a district offering virtual education courses to
charge a fee for the course based on the actual cost the

district incurs to provide the course. The fee in Version R
based on a fraction of the base student allocation is set as a
ceiling for the course fee in Version T. He pointed out that
schools can offer courses at a | ower rate.

8:14:19 AM
CHAI R HUGHES conmented that a set market rate might make a | ot
nore sense.

8:14:36 AM

MR. BANKS said the last change is in Section 21: An additiona
sentence in line 21 was deleted at the request of the Departnent
of Review because during a year of net loss, the legislature
woul d not have been able to appropriate anything from the fund.
The Departnent of Law is looking into this section.

8:15:38 AM

CHAIR HUGHES clarified that the constitutional concern is that
the draw cannot cone fromthe principal. There may be a need for
addi tional |anguage in order to protect the principal.

8:16: 09 AM
CHAIR HUGHES noted a fiscal note from DEED that relates to
Sections 10 and 11 of the bill.

MR. BANKS expl ained that the reduction to school districts wll
be realized over three years.

CHAIR HUGHES corrected it is over four years. She said the
provision is a starting point and is the worst case scenario.
The nunbers may not play out if the districts nake certain
choi ces.

8.18: 14 AM

MR. BANKS said it would take place if the school district did
nothing to nmerge schools together. It would provide incentive to
conbi ne schools in order to save noney.

CHAI R HUGHES provided an exanple of the savings when 6 schools
merge to 3 school s.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 6- March 27, 2017



She suggested | ooking at a chart show ng school capacity, noting
that 53 percent of schools are not at capacity. She maintained
that there are opportunities to save admnistrative funds. She
added that the current comm ssioner conbined schools in his
district.

8:22:16 AM
SENATOR BEG CH said if it is a district of one school this
provi si on woul d not apply.

MR. BANKS said correct.

SENATOR BEG CH asked if the intent is to spread students across
the district.

MR. BANKS said their intent is not to overcrowmd a school. He
expl ai ned the process of conbining schools. He said there are
situations where it would not make sense to nerge school s.

SENATOR BEG CH said that is a concern of his because it is not
stated in the bill.

He asked about cost savings noting that transportation costs
shoul d be considered, as well as the maintenance cost of the old
buildings. He wanted to ensure that the bill does what it
i nt ends.

8:25:19 AM
CHAIR HUGHES pointed out that it is the beginning of the
di scussion. She did not want unintended consequences.

She noted there are two fiscal notes she wanted expl ai ned.

8:26: 09 AM

HEI DI TESHNER, Director, Admnistrative Services, Departnent of
Education and Early Developnent (DEED), answered questions
related to SB 96. She explained the DEED Public Education Fund
fiscal note. She said the formula is over four years because the
first year is a base year. If the district ADM decreases by nore
than 5 percent from the base year to the next fiscal year, the
hold harm ess provision kicks in and the three-year phase in
begi ns.

8:26:53 AM

CHAIR HUGHES inquired if DEED could run a scenario of how the
nunbers woul d be affected by possible school conbinations.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -7- March 27, 2017



M5. TESHNER agreed to do so.

8:.27.32 AM
SENATOR BEG CH asked for the inclusion of transportation costs
in that anal ysis.

M5. TESHNER did not think that was possible because districts
determ ne their own routes and the departnent has no say.

8:28: 00 AM
SENATOR BEG CH asked what the inpact would be on the anount the
state appropriates for pupil transportation.

M5. TESHNER expl ained that the nunber of routes would not have
an effect on the anobunt the state appropriates.

SENATOR BEGQ CH sunmmarized that consolidation would not affect
t he amount provided for transportation.

M5. TESHNER sai d correct.

8:28:49 AM
CHAI R HUGHES hoped to hear fromdistricts on that topic.

She requested informati on about DEED s ot her fiscal note.

8:29:42 AM
CHAI R HUGHES noted it is DEED - Teaching and Learning Support;
St udent and School Achievenent.

8:.29:58 AM

M5. TESHNER expl ained that the note would require 8 full-tine
positions and for 26 districts to receive the cooperation grant
of $100,000 each. Also, there is a one-time cost for course
devel opnment and revi ew of 10 courses over three years.

CHAIR HUGHES requested nore information about the 8 staff
positions.

8:32: 09 AM

M5. TESHNER referred to Section 9 of the fiscal note where there
woul d be one full-tinme position to manage the grant. In Section
16, there are 7 education specialists that would inplenent the
virtual education; of those, 3 are content experts, 1 would
establish the consortium and 2 positions would create and
mai ntai n t he dat abase.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 8- March 27, 2017



8:33:21 AM
CHAI R HUGHES asked what the total amount for those positions is.

M5. TESHNER replied that the total amount, including salary and
benefits, would be $860, 400.

8:33:41 AM
CHAI R HUGHES asked what kind of savings that would provide for
districts.

M5. TESHNER replied that collaboration would save adm nistrative
costs, from sharing of fices and shifting costs from
adm ni strative costs to classroom costs.

8:34: 37 AM
CHAI R HUGHES asked why the nunber 26 for cooperative agreenents
was chosen

M5. TESHNER explained that 26 is half of all school districts
and assunes partnerships will occur.

8:35:17 AM
CHAI R HUGHES renpoved her objection and version T was adopt ed.

CHAI R HUGHES held SB 96 in conmttee.
8:36: 08 AM
There being no further business to come before the commttee

Chair Hughes adjourned the Senate Education Standing Conmittee
at 8:36 a.m

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 9- March 27, 2017



